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Aberdeen Harbour is Europe’s 

premier marine support centre 

for the oil and gas industry and 

the main commercial port serving 

North East Scotland.

OUR VISION 
IS TO BE A MAJOR, COMMERCIALLY SUCCESSFUL 
AND SUSTAINABLE TRUST PORT, INTEGRAL TO 
THE NORTH EAST OF SCOTLAND’S TRANSPORT 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND PROVIDING AN 
INCREASINGLY SIGNIFICANT CONTRIBUTION TO 
ITS ECONOMIC GROWTH.



Cargo tonnage reductions were tempered,  
and fell by just 7.3%, including a drop of only 6.3% 
in oil and gas-related cargo handled. Freight to 
and from the Northern Isles also remained 
steady, with both vehicle import and export 
numbers increasing, along with food product 
exports, which were up by almost 15%.

In looking to the future, the good news is 
that, what were sporadic, lone voices of 
optimism in the UK oil and gas industry, have 
now built into more of a collective chorus 
– albeit singing softly. The reduction in operating 
costs achieved by the majority of North Sea 
operators has been considerable, and combined 
with the apparent underpinning of the oil price 
at the mid-$50 level, have been reflected in 
many of the announcements recently made 
regarding intended activity. The long term 
commitment to the North Sea being voiced 
by many of the majors also reflects the Board’s 
belief that, although greater focus has centred 
upon decommissioning activity in the last year –  
and this plays an important role in our plans  
for Aberdeen South Harbour – there are 
decades of drilling and production yet to  
come in the North Sea. 

Despite this, the Board is also strategically 
committed to pursuing diversification of activity. 

Reliance on a mature offshore environment 
cannot fully stanchion our future plans, and 
much emphasis is placed on the bolstering of 
our current trade in non-oil and gas-related 
commodities. Preparation for the introduction 
of new markets is as much part of our daily 
dialogue within the port as is any other topic. 
The development of these new, game-changing 
facilities must be matched by a new outlook 
and ambition not only for the port, but also for 
and by the city and region it serves.

Whilst reflecting on the past year, it would be 
remiss of me not to take the opportunity to 
thank my fellow non-executive members of 
Aberdeen Harbour Board for their unstinting 
support throughout. I would like to congratulate 
Howard Woodcock on his re-appointment as 
Vice Chairman, and to welcome Jayne Maclennan 
and Luisa Campbell as new non-executive 
members. I also take opportunity to express 
my sincere appreciation to Fred Bowden and 
George Massie, who stepped down from the 
Board this year, after six years of service. Their 
contribution to the Board over this period has 
been significant and much valued, and I wish 
them every success with their future plans.

Most importantly, I would like to express my 
thanks to our hard-working staff, and to our 

many stakeholders for their continued support 
– as a Trust Port they are fundamental to our 
success. It is this fact that spurs us on to ensure 
the port continues to generate a significant 
economic contribution to the local and 
regional economy and to ensure that, through 
our Community Action Fund, we continue to 
make a positive impact at the local level.

Finally, in the year of his retirement after 
almost 30 years with Aberdeen Harbour Board, 
including 11 years as Chief Executive, I know 
that I will be echoing the sentiment of many 
people within Aberdeen, Aberdeenshire and 
throughout the ports industry, when I express 
my sincere thanks to Colin Parker. Colin’s 
leadership has guided the port through 
transformational times, with the modernisation 
of both the port’s facilities and the organisation’s 
culture and outlook. Colin’s pursuit of continuous 
improvement and his vision for the future will 
be appropriately demonstrated with the 
development of Aberdeen South Harbour.   
I have little doubt Colin will monitor construction 
progress with interest and we look forward to 
inviting him in his rightful role as an honoured 
guest at the opening ceremony in 2020.

ALISTAIR MACKENZIE 
Chairman, March 2017

IT’S A STRANGE PHENOMENON 
THAT, WHEN LOOKING FORWARD  
TO THE START OF SOMETHING  
NEW, WE OFTEN FIND OURSELVES 
CASTING A GLIMPSE BACK OVER 
OUR SHOULDER TO THE PAST,  
TO SEE WHAT HISTORY MIGHT 
TEACH US.

When it comes to Aberdeen Harbour, one 
doesn’t have to look far to gain such insight. 
The mid-19th century transformation of the 
harbour, based on the ‘peninsular’ design of 
visionary engineers such as John Smeaton 
and Thomas Telford, elevated the functionality 
of the port to such a degree that tonnage 
entering the port increased five-fold between 
1800 and 1860. That incredible increase in trade, 
which both reflected and stimulated a whole 
range of social and political changes in the 
area at the time, culminated in the emergence 
of Aberdeen as Scotland’s third city.

Similar to the present day, the challenge that 
inspired such transformation was an inability 
by the port to be able to accommodate larger 
vessels, the introduction of which would 
realise their customers’ needs and allow  
the city and region to reach its full potential.  
 

This is very reminiscent of the challenge 
facing the Board six years ago, when the 
limitations of the current harbour footprint – 
despite being revolutionary in its day and 
modernised significantly since then – was 
becoming increasingly apparent.

That we are now ready to embark upon a 
construction project equally innovative and 
ambitious, is a clear demonstration of the 
commitment to continued improvement and 
development in keeping with Trust Port ethos. 
It has been brought about by the hard work of 
a multitude of individuals and organisations, 
including the harbour executive team, staff 
members, consultants, politicians, civil servants 
and customers – all applying their expertise 
and drive, and all of whom I must thank.

The support of our customers deserves 
particular acknowledgement. Despite being 
able to retain rates and dues considerably 
lower than the rates of inflation for many 
decades, the timing of the recent rate increases 
by the Board in support of the development 
was, to say the least, not universally popular. 
That our customers have the foresightedness 
to see the strategic benefits of the new facilities, 
despite the challenges of the current economic 
climate, is testament to their commercial acumen.

 

There is also no doubt, however, that the 
economic conditions impacted harbour 
activity in the last 12 months. Overall vessel 
tonnage decreased by 7.4% during this 
period, with oil and gas and West Africa 
traffic, predictably, impacted the most.  
That said, the fact that supply vessel and 
safety standby vessel activity only decreased 
by approximately 10% and 5% respectively, 
may be surprising to many. 

The recent comparatively mild winter also 
impacted road salt shipments, with that 
activity decreasing by a third, compared with 
the same period the year before. 

Vessel arrival numbers took a greater hit 
– although a 13% reduction is again perhaps 
less than anticipated by many. That this decrease 
was not mirrored by the vessel tonnage 
figures, however, indicates that the trend for 
increasing vessel sizes continues unabated. 

The good news story for vessel arrivals in 
2016 was undoubtedly the 100% increase in 
cruise vessel calls visiting the port, represented 
by the 24 visits that took place. The number  
of bookings for this year is already comparable 
and we have bookings for 2018, proving the 
durability of this recent success story.
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and retail outlets to develop valuable  

guidance on how to become ‘ready  

for cruise’. 

Principal contractor for the South Harbour 

construction project is Dragados UK Ltd,  

acclaimed for its part in major infrastructure 

projects around the world.  

Dragados is also known for its focus on 

community engagement and investment.  

With the support of Aberdeen Harbour  

Board, it has embarked upon a series of 

measures designed to optimise community 

benefit during the project, including local 

amenity improvements, education and 

training programmes. Measures designed  

to ensure targeted local recruitment and 

procurement are also an important part of 

this initiative. As a Trust Port, this approach  

aligns perfectly with the Board’s continued 

commitment to its stakeholders and  

partner organisations.

Indeed, I would like to thank all our 

stakeholders and partners who have 

continued to back the project. The valuable 

cross-party political support; the ongoing 

commitment of our customers; of local 

industry; and of the local community has  

been instrumental in us realising this  

visionary project.  

Finally, on a personal note, my plan to  

retire in October means that 2017 will be  

an even more pivotal year for me than  

the previous one. It has been an incredible 

experience being a part of the Aberdeen 

Harbour Team for almost 30 years. I am  

proud to have been involved during a period 

that the Board and the staff have delivered  

a number of major infrastructure, operational 

and cultural improvements. 

I would like to thank everyone for their support 

throughout this time and especially during  

my 11 years in the role of Chief Executive.  

I shall, of course, enjoy keeping up to date 

with the South Harbour Project (albeit between 

rounds of golf) and look forward to celebrating 

project completion in 2020.

COLIN PARKER 

Chief Executive, March 2017

IT IS SAFE TO SAY THAT, FOR MANY 

YEARS TO COME, WE SHALL LOOK 

BACK AT 2016 AS A PIVOTAL YEAR 

FOR ABERDEEN HARBOUR. 

Although activity in the current harbour was 

impacted by the reduced oil price, particularly 

in the first half of 2016, this impact was 

tempered to a large degree by the mixed 

portfolio of activity that the harbour supports. 

Many sectors, including Northern Isles 

activity, remained steady, and we saw 

increases in activity associated with cruise 

vessel calls and new business involving the 

preparations for the harbour’s support of the 

European Offshore Wind Deployment Centre.

The start of 2016 found the Harbour Team 

working hard at progressing the Nigg Bay 

Feasibility Study (as it was then), and they 

had not long submitted the full suite of major 

planning consent applications to the Scottish 

Government. Twelve months later, these 

consents have been secured, the contract for 

construction signed, and work on site of the new

Aberdeen South Harbour has commenced, 

which is a significant achievement in such a 

short period.

2017 is witnessing a similar pace of activity 

to that of 2016, with site preparations 

dominating Q1 and construction of the North 

Breakwater commencing in Q2. This constitutes 

the first phase of a work schedule that will 

continue through to 2020, when the Aberdeen 

South Harbour will become operational.

The design and scale of the new facilities will 

be impressive. The project will provide an 

additional 125,000 square metres of laydown 

area (equivalent to 17.5 football pitches) and 

1,400 metres of quayside (equivalent to well 

over the length of Union Street), all with 

depths of up to 10.5 metres. Combined with 

the existing harbour, these new facilities will 

make Aberdeen the largest port in Scotland  

in terms of berthage. 

The development of new port infrastructure 

on this scale has inspired an enthusiastic 

response from industry – both by existing 

customers and potential new sectors. 

Despite supporting decommissioning activity 

for several years now, the new facilities  

at Aberdeen South Harbour will signify a 

major step change in the type of support  

that we can provide this evolving sector.  

The creation of a decommissioning support 

centre adjacent to the world-renowned oil  

and gas supply chain in Aberdeen, supported 

by the broadest range of certified service 

companies, and connected to trunk road 

accessibility is a major development.  

The heavy lift capabilities of the port and,  

of course, the additional water depth are  

the icing on the cake of this remarkable 

decommissioning package.

Cruise liner operators, striving to minimise  

the number of cruise calls where passengers 

need to be ferried to shore by tender, are 

keenly anticipating the ability to berth vessels 

of up to 300 metres in length alongside. They 

regard the port as a gateway to an incredible 

city and region of untapped visitor attractions. 

Our work with CruiseAberdeenshire is aimed 

at creating a network of interested parties, 

including visitor attractions, transport providers
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DID YOU KNOW KEY OBJECTIVES

1961

A TRUST PORT’S STAKEHOLDERS CONSTITUTE A WIDE 

AUDIENCE, INCLUDING EMPLOYEES; LOCAL RESIDENTS; 

COMMUNITIES; PORT USERS (INCLUDING FERRY 

PASSENGERS); CUSTOMERS; LOCAL AND NATIONAL 

GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVES; BUSINESS 

COMMUNITIES; STATUTORY AUTHORITIES; LOCAL 

INTEREST GROUPS AND ENVIRONMENTAL BODIES. 

PRINCIPAL 
MARINE SUPPORT 
CENTRE FOR OIL 
AND GAS AND 
RENEWABLES

PRINCIPAL 
MAINLAND PORT 
FOR LIFELINE 
NORTH ISLES 
FERRY SERVICES

MAIN 
COMMERCIAL 
PORT 
FOR NORTH EAST 
SCOTLAND

ENHANCE 
RELATIONSHIP 
WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS

CONTINUOUS 
ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPROVEMENT

BECAME 
A MODERN 
TRUST 
PORT IN

All profit or surpluses 

made from Trust Port 

operations are 

reinvested into the 

operation, maintenance 

and administration 

of the port.

from Trust Port operations are reinvested into 

the operation, maintenance and administration 

of the port.

There are approximately 100 Trust Ports in  

the UK, and Trust Port status has proven to be  

a highly successful model for Aberdeen, since 

becoming a trust in 1961. It allows the harbour 

to operate in a commercial environment with 

no direct public funding, but also enables it to 

compete in the open market with private and 

local authority-owned facilities. 

Continuous Improvement

A long-term view is at the heart of everything 

we do at Aberdeen Harbour. We are 

committed to constantly improving and 

modernising harbour assets, services and 

infrastructure for the benefit of all our 

stakeholders. Major infrastructure projects  

can be undertaken with greater confidence 

and often with greater clarity than in other 

areas of the private sector. A Trust Port is  

also free from shareholder pressure and, 

traditionally, Aberdeen Harbour has refrained 

from increasing harbour rates above inflation

unless it has had a specific harbour-related 

improvement reason for doing so.

Stakeholders

There are many, many stakeholders of a Trust 

Port, playing an intrinsic role in operational 

matters and also shaping how the port is 

perceived in the local community. Stakeholders 

have a crucial role to play in driving Aberdeen 

Harbour forward. By working together, the 

Board and stakeholders can deliver a vibrant, 

prosperous port that will provide a bright and 

secure future for many generations to come.

The duty of Trust Board members and staff 

is to “hand it [the port] on in the same or 

better condition to succeeding generations. 

This remains the ultimate responsibility of the 

Board, and future generations remain the 

ultimate stakeholder”.* In other words, it is 

the role of the Board members, and those 

working for the organisation, to safeguard and 

improve the port so that it continues to flourish.

A Trust Port differs from a privately owned port 

in that it has no shareholders who require a 

dividend, instead all profit or surpluses made 

A Trust Port is an independent statutory body, created 

by an Act of Parliament. As such, it is not controlled 

by a local authority, nor is it a private business. 

Instead, it is run by an independent board, for the 

benefit of its stakeholders, and governed by its own 

local legislation. 

OPERATING A TRUST PORT

Fundamental to the role of a Trust Port is 
engagement with its stakeholders.

Aberdeen Harbour takes advantage of  
many forms of communication to ensure  
its relationship with stakeholders is a  
productive and proactive one. 

These include: 

>  Annual Public Meeting (June)
>  Stakeholder Christmas Lunch (December)
>  Annual Review (Published in June)
>  Website News and Community Pages 
>  News Articles in Local and National Media
>  Industry Publications
>  Community Publications
>  Attending Community Council Meetings

STAKEHOLDER 
ENGAGEMENT

100
MORE THAN

TRUST PORTS 
IN UK

*(Modern Trust Ports for Scotland – a guide to good governance).



BOARD CONSTITUTION

Aberdeen Harbour Board is an independent statutory authority formed 

under the terms of the Aberdeen Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1960.  

It is responsible for the administration, maintenance and improvement 

of the port. The Board comprises nine non-executive members and 

two senior officials, appointed by the Board, and the Chief Executive.

BOARD APPOINTMENT PROCESS

Appointments of non-executive Board members are based on equal 

opportunities and on merit. Candidates are sought who have a 

complementary range of qualities, competencies and experience.

All vacancies are openly advertised and appointments are made by  

the Board after a process of interviewing and selection, carried out  

by an appointing panel, including independent persons. 

TERMS OF OFFICE

All non-executive members hold office for a term of three years. 

Consideration for reappointment is subject to performance;  

however, a vacating member, other than the Chairman and  

Vice-Chairman, will not be eligible for reappointment if they have 

previously served three consecutive terms (i.e. nine years).

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman will not be eligible for  

reappointment as a member if they have held office as a member  

for four consecutive terms (i.e. 12 years).

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, the 

Chairman, the Vice-Chairman and two non-executive Board members. 

Its principal duties are to consider matters relating to staff wages  

and salaries. The Committee also considers in detail items or  

issues delegated or remitted by the Board, and reports back with 

recommendations or details of actions taken. 

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of five non-executive Board members. 

Its principal duties are to manage external audits of management 

controls; to review external and internal audit strategy and to appoint 

and manage external auditors; to review annual/management accounts 

and financial statements; to monitor the performance of the Board’s 

long-term investments, and to benchmark the Board’s corporate 

governance performance.

THE PROPERTY COMMITTEE

The Property Committee consists of four non-executive Board 

members and its principal duties are to prepare and keep under review 

the estate management strategies relating to the Board’s land and 

property holdings; to consider appropriate opportunities for extending 

the Board’s property portfolio, and to review the appointment, 

performance and fees of the Board’s external property advisors.

Our Board

09 NON-EXECUTIVE 
MEMBERS

03 EXECUTIVE 
MEMBERS

EXPERT KNOWLEDGE IN:

FINANCE, LAW,  
OIL AND GAS, 
PROPERTY,
PORTS, MARINE 
AND COMMERCIAL

12 BOARD 
MEMBERS
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LUISA CAMPBELL 
Non-executive member  
Board member since 2017

Luisa is the Managing Director  
of William Wilson Limited,  
which is part of Wolseley UK.  
Until recently she also held the  
role of Regional Trading Director  
of Plumb Centre for Scotland  
and Northern Ireland. Luisa has 
been with William Wilson for 23 
years and oversees the operation  
of 23 branches across Scotland.

ABERDEEN HARBOUR 

BOARD IS AN 

INDEPENDENT 

STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

FORMED UNDER THE 

TERMS OF THE 

ABERDEEN HARBOUR 

ORDER CONFIRMATION 

ACT 1960. 

JAMES BELL 
Finance Director  
Board member since 2011

James joined Aberdeen Harbour 
Board in 2009 from Caledonian 
Brewery, where he had been Head 
of Finance since 2002. He trained 
with Bird Simpson Chartered 
Accountants and has worked with 
Meston Reid and Diageo. James  
is also Chairman of the Finance 
Group of British Ports Association,  
which was initiated in 2010.

JAYNE MACLENNAN 
Non-executive member  
Board member since 2017

Until recently Group Director  
of Property for First Group PLC, 
where she worked for 22 years, 
Jayne is also non-executive  
director of Glasgow Prestwick 
Airport. She has a BSc (Hons)  
degree in Estates Management and 
is a full member of the Royal  
Institute of Chartered Surveyors.  
Jayne has previously chaired the  
CBI’s Infrastructure Group.

ALISTAIR MACKENZIE 
Chairman  
Board member since 2010

Alistair has worked in Aberdeen’s 
energy industry for more than  
20 years. He is currently European 
Director (Oil & Gas) for Achilles 
Group Limited and owner/director  
of Mentor Aviation Services Ltd. 
Alistair is also Chairman of the 
Northern Lighthouse Board.

MORAG McNEILL 
Non-executive member 
Board member since 2013

Morag is a solicitor and was a partner 
in McGrigors LLP before joining Forth Ports 
PLC as General Counsel. She left Forth 
Ports in 2012 and now has a portfolio 
of non-executive directorships including 
Caledonian Maritime Assets Ltd and 
Scottish Exhibition Campus Ltd. Morag 
is a trustee of a number of charities 
including Social Investment Scotland. 
She is also a member of Court at Heriot 
Watt University and the Audit 
Committee at the University of Aberdeen.

MIKE BOWYER  
Non-executive member 
Board member since 2013

Mike is a Chartered Engineer  
and Chartered Director who has 
worked in the oil and gas industry 
for over 40 years, holding senior 
executive positions with several 
companies. A past Chair of the 
Aberdeen Branch of the Institute  
of Directors he is currently a  
Board member of Acona AS,  
a Norwegian Service Company.

COLIN PARKER 
Chief Executive 
Board member since 2003

Colin joined Aberdeen Harbour in 
1987 and was appointed by the 
Board to the post of Chief Executive 
in 2006. Colin is a Council Member 
of the British Ports Association.  
He became Chairman of the Scottish 
Council for Development and 
Industry’s North East Committee in 
January 2012 and is also a member 
of its main board. Colin joined 
Opportunity North East’s Oil and Gas 
board in December 2015.

MALCOLM LAING  
Non-executive member  
Board member since 2012

With over 30 years’ experience 
of corporate and commercial  
work including the energy service 
sector, Malcolm is a corporate 
lawyer and formerly a partner  
in Ledingham Chalmers LLP.  
He now works for Ledingham 
Chalmers LLP as a consultant  
and is also Vice-Chairman  
of the charity, Cornerstone.

TONY STRACHAN 
Non-executive member  
Board member since 2013

Tony is a Fellow of the Institute  
of Chartered Secretaries and 
Administrators. Between 2003  
and 2010 he served as the  
Bank of England’s representative  
in Scotland. He is Deputy  
Chair at Heriot Watt University  
and also Chair of its 
Remuneration Committee.

HOWARD WOODCOCK 
Vice-Chairman 
Board member since 2012

Howard has been involved 
in shipping and marine businesses 
for 30 years. He has been  
Chief Executive of Bibby Offshore 
Holdings Limited since 2005  
and has also helped with the 
fundraising for a number of  
local organisations, including 
Cornerstone and Absafe.

CHRIS BAIN 
External Relations Director  
Board member since 2014

Chris began her career in  
helicopter and marine logistics  
in 1994, later working as a  
Logistics Manager with Petrofac, 
Dubai Petroleum and Ras Al 
Khaimah Petroleum. She joined  
the Aberdeen Harbour Executive  
in April 2013. 

MIKE PORTER 
Non-executive member 
Board member since 2015

Mike entered the oil and gas 
industry in the late 1970s and is 
experienced in the provision of 
offshore logistics, marine and 
integrated supply base solutions.  
He has held several leadership 
positions, latterly as Chief  
Operating Officer with Peterson 
prior to joining the Harbour Board  
in January 2015.

BOARD MEMBER ATTENDANCE 2016

Board 
Meetings

Remuneration 
Committee

Audit 
Committee

Property 
Committee

NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

Alistair Mackenzie (Chairman) 9 of 9 1 of 1 N/A N/A

Howard Woodcock (Vice-Chairman) 8 of 9 1 of 1 N/A 3 of 5

Mike Bowyer 8 of 9 1 of 1 3 of 3 N/A

George Massie 8 of 9 N/A N/A 4 of 5

Malcolm Laing 9 of 9 N/A 2 of 3 N/A

Fred Bowden 9 of 9 1 of 1 3 of 3 N/A

Mike Porter 8 of 9 N/A N/A 5 of 5

Morag McNeill 9 of 9 N/A 3 of 3 5 of 5

Tony Strachan 8 of 9 N/A 2 of 3 N/A

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

Colin Parker (Chief Executive) 9 of 9 1 of 1 N/A N/A

Chris Bain (External Relations Director) 9 of 9 N/A N/A N/A

James Bell (Finance Director) 9 of 9 1 of 1 3 of 3 N/A



REPORTING TO THE BOARD, THE 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AT ABERDEEN 

HARBOUR REPRESENT AN EXPERIENCE 

AND SKILL BASE THAT, WHEN 

COMBINED, ENSURES THAT ALL 

PRIMARY FUNCTIONS OF THE PORT  

ARE CARRIED OUT TO THE HIGHEST 

LEVELS OF PROFICIENCY, 

PROFESSIONALISM AND SAFETY. 

The directors also carry the responsibility  

to ensure that the strategic aims of the  

Board are translated and applied to all  

harbour operations at every juncture.

Colin Parker is Chief Executive and leads  

the Team of Executive Directors. The 

responsibilities of this team are broad, but at 

the most basic level, they must ensure that:

> vessels have a safe and navigable place  

 of shelter

> the integrity and design of the quays  

 and waterways are kept to the highest  

 engineering standards

> the organisation applies a system  

 of sound financial management and  

 remains commercially successful

> a high level of interaction is maintained  

 with a wide range of harbour   

 stakeholders, including staff members,  

 customers, port users, members of the  

 local community, interest groups, 

 local and regional authorities, industry  

 and civic groups.

“ We have a great complement of talents  

 and skills within our executive team,   

 with each Director committed to the values  

 and success of the organisation.

 The team are all strong exponents of  

 the Trust Port model, and its strategic  

 long-term view, having witnessed the  

 benefits that its application has brought 

 to the organisation, its stakeholders and  

 local and regional economies. They also  

 share the Board’s vision for Aberdeen  

 Harbour to remain a major, commercially  

 successful and sustainable Trust Port,  

 integral to the North East of Scotland’s  

 transport infrastructure and providing an  

 increasingly significant contribution to  

 its economic growth.” 

Colin Parker, Chief Executive

ABERDEEN MANAGEMENT TEAM
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COLIN PARKER
Chief Executive

KEITH YOUNG
Engineering Director

JAMES BELL
Finance Director

JEFF GASKIN
Harbour Master

CHRIS BAIN
External Relations Director

MATT NORTH
Commercial Director
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Aberdeen Harbour Board’s strategic focus on 

diversification was further rewarded at the end 

of 2016 by the announcement that Vattenfall 

had signed leases totalling 24 years with the 

port, becoming the first offshore wind operator 

to invest long term in the port’s facilities.

Since then Vattenfall, with the support of the 

Harbour’s Operation Team and local suppliers,  

has been establishing a base for its construction 

team within the Regent Centre, whilst moving 

maintenance equipment into a refurbished 

warehouse unit at Commercial Quay. The facilities 

will support the construction, commissioning, 

operation and maintenance and eventual 

decommissioning phases of Vattenfall’s  

£300 million European Offshore Wind Deployment 

Centre (EOWDC) off the Aberdeen coast.

Adam Ezzamel, Project Director for the EOWDC 

at Vattenfall, said: “Establishing a long-term centre 

of operations in Aberdeen has been fundamental 

to our project plans. We are pleased to have found 

a suitable location so near to the wind farm with the 

support of Aberdeen Harbour Board”. 

Chief Executive at Aberdeen Harbour Board,  

Colin Parker, said: “Whilst Aberdeen Harbour has 

supported both onshore and offshore renewables 

projects many times in the past, we very much 

welcome this long-term commitment to the port 

by Vattenfall. We believe that our location and 

modern facilities are ideal to support this work, 

and this agreement typifies our continued 

strategy for diversification of harbour activity,  

to the benefit of the region”.  

The EOWDC is Scotland’s largest offshore wind 

test and demonstration facility. It is being 

developed by Vattenfall-owned Aberdeen 

Offshore Wind Farm Limited and is expected to 

generate first power in summer 2018.

Telford Dock was once the home to ship building companies 

renowned throughout the world. Companies such as Walter 

Hood & Co, Alexander Hall and Sons and later, Hall & Russell 

(involving the sons of Alexander Hall). Many were famous for 

building sleek, world-beating three-masted clippers, such as  

the Thermopylae, which held speed records around the world. 

Today these companies and their achievements are reflected in the names of the quays within 

Telford Dock, such as Duthies, Halls, Russell and Clipper Quays – but today’s dock is anything but  

set in the past. Totally rebuilt in 1994 at a cost of £14 million, today’s facilities are state of the art,  

and at a water depth of up to 10 metres can handle the largest vessels that enter Aberdeen 

Harbour. With a combined quay length of 520 metres, heavy lift capabilities, significant laydown 

area and fully serviced berths, Telford Dock provides all the functionality to allow vessels the 

advantages of safe, speedy and efficient turn-arounds.

TELFORD DOCK: BUILT FOR SPACE AND SPEED

We asked Tobi Sogl, Captain of one of our regular visitors to Telford Dock,  
the MV Well Enhancer, to list the aspects of Telford Dock that were most 
beneficial to his operations: 

> Bunkers are by fixed piping, which reduces turn-around time

> Significant quay space and laydown area 

> Quality traffic management system

> Proximity to established supply chain in Aberdeen local area

> Central to all services for the vessel (assistance is only minutes away)

> The UK main office “just up the road” in Dyce

> Transport facilities, i.e. airport/train station/bus station 

> MCA offices are in Aberdeen and this means that the audits are from the local office

> Close proximity of retail (including supermarket) and leisure/recreation facilities MV Well Enhancer
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ABERDEEN 
HARBOUR’S RAIL 
CONNECTION 

From rail to ship and ship to 
rail flexibility, with a twice 
weekly service from 
Aberdeen Harbour to 
Mossend, which is Scotland’s 
International Rail-Freight 
Park, enabling a UK wide 
connectivity for cargo.

Current cargo flow to  
North Ayrshire and North 
East England.

Operationally 
Speaking

This image is an indicative illustration of what the EOWDC could look like and not the final design.



2016: STATISTICALLY SPEAKING
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SPEAKING

exceptionally large vessels that it will be capable 

of accommodating, we always had to add at 

least one standard sized object from which 

scale could be derived – a great example is the 

pilot boat included in the image above – before 

our audience experienced their ‘wow’ moment. 

Even then, we have often had to add a verbal 

clue – for example, that the cruise ship in the 

same image is almost three football pitches 

(300m) in length – before the scale of the 

development is unlocked in the mind of the 

onlooker. Once the scale is realised, however, 

it is much easier to understand how, when 

added to the berthage available in the existing 

harbour, the development of Aberdeen South 

Harbour will make us Scotland’s largest port 

in terms of available berthage.

In the following pages Engineering Director, 

Keith Young will explore the innovative 

engineering techniques that are being 

employed to construct this game-changing 

facility. In addition to this, our Commercial 

Director, Matt North, will investigate the 

range of business opportunities that this 

highly adaptable piece of infrastructure will 

provide for our existing customers, for new 

markets, for the city, region, and Scotland  

as a whole.

Finally, Chris Bain, our External Relations 

Director will describe the range of community 

benefits and amenity improvements that will 

accompany the new development, including 

local employment and training opportunities.  

Chris will detail measures designed to 

support local businesses, and the structured 

support for community organisations. 

We will also explain the many environmental 

safeguards and mitigation measures that  

the project will employ to ensure the impact 

of the construction project on our local 

environment is minimised to the greatest 

possible extent.

Looking at the development from a national 

viewpoint, this project is one of the largest 

port developments to be seen in Scotland  

for many decades.

It was perhaps a given that, in planning a 

development of this magnitude, many 

challenges would be faced and overcome 

before our principal contractor even set foot 

on the site. One that no one in the management 

team could have foreseen, however, was the 

difficulty the team found in managing to 

convey the true scale of the development. 

We discovered early on that, rather than just 

fill our digital images of the port with the
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SOUTH HARBOUR:  
BUILDING CONFIDENCE
Despite £200 million of investment in the existing harbour 

in recent decades, the creation of South Harbour is the 

most significant development to be carried out by 

Aberdeen Harbour Board since Thomas Telford’s visionary 

ideas transformed the harbour in the mid 1800s. 

CONSENTS GRANTED
May 2016 to Dec 2016

DETAILED COMPENSATION 
& MITIGATION PLAN
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SOUTH HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT PROGRESSION



The first stage in the construction process  

for Aberdeen South Harbour will be the 

building of the North Breakwater. This 

structure is formed through the use of 

increasing sizes of stone, protected by an 

outer layer of carefully placed pre-cast concrete 

armour units, weighing up to 30 tonnes.

During the construction of the North  

Breakwater dredging will commence.  

This will deepen the new harbour basin  

to a depth of 14.1m*. The East Quay and 

approach channel will be dredged to an  

even deeper depth of 15.1m*.

The dredging will be done using a combination 

of trailer suction, cutter suction and back-hoe 

dredgers. The bulk of the suitable dredge material 

will be used in the land reclamation that will 

form the new quays. The surplus will be deposited 

at sea at the licenced disposal ground.  

On completion of the North Breakwater,  

the South Breakwater will commence using 

the same technique.  

When a sufficiently sheltered harbour has 

been created, the quays will be constructed.

The East and much of the North Quay will be 

built using large pre-cast concrete caissons. 

The remainder of the North Quay and the  

West Quay will be built as a conventional 

suspended concrete deck supported on steel 

piles driven into the ground.

SOUTH HARBOUR: ENGINEERING EXCELLENCE

The reinforced concrete caissons are 

constructed offsite on a floating dry dock.  

The main component parts in the construction, 

however, such as the concrete batching  

plant, formwork and steel reinforcement  

are assembled on the quayside.

The steel for the caisson floor is erected  

on the pontoon of the dry dock ready for  

the concrete to be cast around it.

The pontoon with the foundation slab and 

first section of steel reinforcement is floated 

into place within the dry dock structure.   

The structure has a working platform above 

from which the steel reinforced cages and 

formwork are lowered into place.

The steel reinforced concrete cells are 

constructed using a slipform technique.   

The concrete for each cell wall is placed  

from the platform above in 10cm lifts and  

as the concrete cures to a sufficient strength, 

the formwork is lifted upwards. After a height 

of about 5m is reached, the pontoon is 

lowered into the water for stability and the 

process continues.

When the caisson has reached the finished 

height, the concrete cells are filled with  

water for ballast and the dry dock pontoon 

lowered in the water sufficient for the caisson 

to be floated out. It can then be towed to  

its final destination.

On reaching the construction site the caisson 

is manoeuvred into position and filled with 

water and sunk into place. The water is then 

replaced with local sands and gravels.

Caisson Construction 
Methodology

THE DESIGN OF ABERDEEN SOUTH HARBOUR HAS BEEN MANY YEARS IN THE MAKING, INVOLVING A SERIES 

OF PLANNING, TESTING, ADJUSTMENT AND RE-TESTING PHASES. ALTHOUGH A TECHNICALLY LESS COMPLEX 

TASK, THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE NEW FACILITIES WILL ALSO INVOLVE SEVERAL PHASES OF WORK.
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CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMME TIMETABLE

May 2017: Dredging commences
May 2017: Work commences North Breakwater
Mar 2018:  Work commences South Breakwater
Jul 2018:  Work commences on West Quay
Sep 2018:  Dredging completed

Feb 2019:  Work commences East and North Quay
Jun 2019:  West Quay completed  
Oct 2019:  North Breakwater completed
Nov 2019:  South Breakwater completed
Jan 2020:  East and North Quay completed
Jun 2020:  Construction completion

The reclaimed ground to the rear will be  

made up as much as possible with  

material from the dredging plus some 

imported material from local quarries.  

This will be paved with reinforced concrete.  

Services such as fuel and water pipes  

will be incorporated into the concrete  

deck and LED lighting masts will  

illuminate the quays. The entire site 

will be made secure by a fence to  

international security standards,  

with a gatehouse and welfare facilities  

also provided. 

* At MHWS Tide
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SOME SOUTH HARBOUR FACTS:

VESSEL LENGTH UP TO

300m

MATT NORTH

South Harbour: 
Delivering Scale

TRANSFER LOAD
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DEDICATED PROJECT AREA

5 acres

Transforming the scale of facilities provided has been key to Aberdeen 

Harbour Board’s motivation for expansion of its facilities since the project’s 

inception six years ago, and with an increase in scale – in terms of quay 

length, water depth and heavy-lift capacity – comes the ability to support 

significant heavy lift projects. 

SERIOUSLY WELL CONNECTED
Aberdeen’s incredible supply chain is what secures the city as the country’s primary  

oil and gas support centre – and Aberdeen Harbour is at its very heart.

WASTE MANAGEMENT
SERVICES

TRUNK ROAD  
CONNECTED

INSTALLED INTERCEPTORS, 
ALLOWING RESIZING OPERATIONS

NORM WASTE 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES

INTERNATIONAL  
AIRPORT 40 MINS

ESTABLISHED SHIPPING 
CONNECTIONS TO  
SCRAP PROCESSORS

METAL DISPOSAL  
SERVICES

MODERN, COMPLIANT  
AND SECURE FACILITIES
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FOR THE FIRST TIME ABERDEEN, THE NATURAL HOME OF OIL AND GAS SUPPORT SERVICES IN SCOTLAND, WILL BE ABLE 

TO COMPETE IN TERMS OF PROVIDING FACILITIES CAPABLE OF HANDLING VESSELS AND PROJECTS OF SIGNIFICANT SIZE. 

This capability, combined with the incredible array of service providers that are available to those choosing to operate through the port,  

make South Harbour a highly attractive proposition indeed. 

ALE, a global leader in heavy transportation and lifting, recently carried out a study of South Harbour’s capabilities, providing us with the  

following working example:

> ALE was tasked with transporting a subsea jacket  
 structure weighing 1,600 tonnes with dimensions at the  
 base of 35 x 35 metres.

> In addition, they were tasked with transportation of a  
 topside module weighing 1,200 tonnes with dimensions  
 of 20 x 14 metres.

ALE STUDY FINDINGS:

We found that South Harbour will have the facilities to allow 
the safe transition of both structures from a standard North 
Sea transfer barge to the quayside utilising SPMTs, or by 
skidding, for heavier structures. The adaptability of the SPMTs 
allows the structures to be moved locally and positioned at 
the module laydown area(s) suited to the end client.

ALE, together with Aberdeen Harbour Board, can draw upon 
the following equipment capabilities to allow the safe load-in 
of the structures:

THE VIRTUAL CHALLENGE 
> Barge and chartering services

> 56 axle lines of SPMTs (including power packs)

> Ro-Ro bridge system

> Stand-alone deck mounted ballast system

> Hydraulic winch system

> Temporary support grillage (for barge and laydown areas)

> Fenders

> Full engineering package

> Support cranes

The services will be fully scalable, allowing the harbour to  
be used for smaller or larger structures, allowing mooring of 
larger barges and vessels.

Our thanks to ALE for this work, and Aberdeen Harbour is pleased to engage with all heavy-lift project solution providers,  

operators and shippers for the purpose of meeting such challenges.

* Higher load capacities can be  
accommodated via engineered solutions



As the bigger cruise vessels, which most people are familiar  

with, are too large to enter Aberdeen Harbour, the vessels  

that currently visit the harbour are all smaller cruise vessels, 

which are generally associated with specialist tours such  

as bird watching or fine dining. 

Welcome as these vessels are, the development of South Harbour  

will allow Aberdeen city, Aberdeenshire and Moray to fully experience 

the impact of the phenomenon which is the larger vessel cruise 

market in Scotland today. The growth figures emanating from this 

sector are quite astounding. In the seven years since the member 

organisation Cruise Scotland has been in existence and has been 

measuring activity, cruise calls have increased by 119% and passenger 

numbers by 144%, with an incredible 656,000 passengers expected 

to visit Scotland’s shores in 2017. In the opinion of the cruise 

operators, this growth is set to continue for many years to come.

What South Harbour will provide is a much sought-after ability to  

berth large cruise vessels alongside, eliminating the need for  

cruise operators to ferry passengers to shore by small boat.  

The cruise companies are also enthusiastic regarding what this  

corner of the country has to offer, in the form of historic buildings; 

gardens; golf courses; majestic scenery and wildlife; outdoor  

activities; arts and culture; as well as food and drink – not to mention 

the many distilleries that are producing exciting new products,  

along with some of the most famous tipples in the world. It is not  

an exaggeration to describe the area supported by Aberdeen Harbour 

as representing one of the last great, untapped cruise destinations  

in the UK. 

Working with a range of organisations, including VisitAberdeenshire  

and Scottish Enterprise, Aberdeen Harbour are supporting 

CruiseAberdeenshire in its aim to create a network of tourist 

attractions, transport providers, retail outlets, and hotel operators,  

all with an interest in this potential new market, and to ensure  

that we are all ‘ready for cruise’. 

It may be a surprise to many that cruise vessels have been visiting Aberdeen  
for several years now, and the 24 cruise calls to the port in 2016 represented  
a 100% increase on the previous year. 2017 also looks like it will be a busy 
season for cruise activity, and bookings are already in place for 2018.
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HOME TO  
ICONIC HIGHLAND 
GATHERINGS  
AND GAMES

HOME TO 
THE ROYAL  
FAMILY’S HIGHLAND  
CASTLE

HOME TO  
THE GOLDEN EAGLE, 
CAPERCAILLIE,  
PINE MARTIN AND 
RED SQUIRREL

HOME TO  
ANCIENT GLENS  
AND HIGH-PEAKED 
MOUNTAINS

HOME TO  
SOME OF THE  
GREATEST WHISKIES 
IN THE WORLD

HOME TO  
CASTLES THAT 
INSPIRED  
GREAT WRITERS

HOME TO  
SOME OF THE  
MOST BEAUTIFUL 
SCENERY IN  
THE UK

HOME TO  
SPECTACULAR  
LINKS AND  
PARK COURSES

South Harbour: Ready for Cruise

Aberdeen South Harbour: Cruise operator information
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Dragados UK has established a Community 

Investment Fund in support of the expansion 

project. A total of £70,000 is being shared out 

amongst local community groups and charities 

over the lifetime of the project. In addition to 

this, Dragados UK has introduced a Timebank 

scheme, which is providing 100 days per year 

of volunteer time: giving local organisations 

and projects even more hands-on support. 

Community organisations can apply for 

financial support from this fund and time from 

the Timebank on a bi-annual basis.

To apply for Community Fund or Timebank 

support, please contact AHEP@dragados.com
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COMMUNITY FUND  
AND TIMEBANK

Managed by a Community Benefit 
Steering Group, which includes 
representatives from North East 
Scotland College, Aberdeen Council 
for Voluntary Organisations, 
Construction Industry Training Board 
and Aberdeen City Council, the 
Aberdeen Harbour Expansion Project 
Local Training Plan includes a range 
of initiatives focussed on optimising 
employment and training 
opportunities associated with the 
expansion project. 

These include the provision of 
apprenticeships by subcontractors 
working on the construction project,  
the development of training courses 
specific to activities that will be carried 
out on site, work placements for 
students, and the development of  
an Ambassador Programme, where 
individuals currently seeking work will  

be offered Welcome Host Training  
and the opportunity to volunteer as 
ambassadors for the project at the 
project visitor centre.

Located at Walker Park, the project 
visitor centre will act as a hub,  
where local school parties can visit  
and find out more about how the new 
facilities are being constructed. It is 
hoped that young people from the city 
and shire will not only find out more 
about the history of Aberdeen Harbour 
and about how harbours operate 
generally, but perhaps will be inspired  
to find out more about civil engineering 
as a possible career.

The expansion of Aberdeen Harbour will bring many benefits to the 

City and Region in terms of new business and diversified activity, 

but these benefits will not be the only ones generated by the development.  

A range of measures has been developed by Aberdeen Harbour, and its principal construction contractor, Dragados UK, which are  

aimed at benefiting local residents, the local community and Aberdeen as a whole. These initiatives will ensure that employment,  

training, education and amenity improvement opportunities are all maximised throughout the construction project and beyond. 

In addition to this, the introduction of a Community Fund and Timebank will allow the project to provide direct support for community  

groups and organisations.

South Harbour: 
Community Benefits

Amenity Improvement
Opportunities
Designed to enhance the local area, and as part of the Aberdeen Harbour  

Board Expansion Programme Detailed Mitigation & Compensation Plan,  

a series of amenity and landscaping improvement initiatives are planned,  

scheduled to run in conjunction with the construction project. 

These initiatives, such as the introduction of further landscaping, access paths  

and play facilities for St. Fitticks Park; the realignment of the coastal cycle path; 

improved parking facilities; and the introduction of coastal viewing points and  

outdoor classrooms, will all be developed to complement the local environment 

and topography.

LOCAL TRAINING  
AND EMPLOYMENT

SOUTH HARBOUR WILL STIMULATE COMMERCIAL 
OPPORTUNITIES FOR AS MANY LOCAL BUSINESSES 
AS POSSIBLE.

Already Dragados UK, in partnership with Aberdeen City Council, has  

hosted three Meet the Buyer events, which have attracted almost 200  

company representatives. Each event has focussed on different procurement 

requirements, and contracts have already been awarded as a result.

This process is set to continue, and for further details on Meet the Buyer  

events contact AHEP@dragados.com

Meet the Buyer

Opening in August 2017, and located on 
Greyhope Road, overlooking the bay, the South 
Harbour Construction Site visitor centre will 
provide a range of information on the design and 
construction processes to be used on the project, 
along with some background on the fascinating 
history of Aberdeen Harbour: the oldest existing 
business in the UK. The centre will play host to  
a programme of school visits and will be open  
to the public at advertised times.

Visitor Centre

EXPANSION PROJECT COMMUNITY BENEFITS

CHRIS BAIN

TimeBank

Dragados is working with Aberdeen Harbour Board to develop 

the Construction Environmental Management Document 

(CEMD), which sets out the details of how the environmental 

mitigation and monitoring will be delivered. 

This includes innovative measures to reduce underwater sound 

during construction, and strict management of construction 

traffic. Dragados’ Environmental Clerk of Works will work closely 

with Aberdeen Harbour Board’s environment team to ensure that 

all site staff comply with the requirements of the CEMD.

Environmental Mitigation



ABERDEEN HARBOUR  
ENGAGES WITH RESOURCE 
EFFICIENT SCOTLAND

At the end of 2016, Aberdeen Harbour 
Board engaged with Resource 
Efficient Scotland (RES) to commission 
an energy audit of three of our main 
assets with a view to reducing carbon 
emissions. The audits were designed 
to look at current plant and innovation 
to improve Aberdeen Harbour  
Board’s energy performance. RES 
was extremely helpful throughout  
the process and has helped identify  
how Aberdeen Harbour Board can 
save costs whilst improving our  
energy efficiency.

Health, Safety and 
Environmental Focus

KEY FACTS 2016

Aberdeen Harbour Board continues to be committed to marine safety and to full compliance with the UK Port Marine Safety Code, and recognises its individual and collective 
responsibility as Duty Holders. Aberdeen Harbour Board’s independent Designated Person has presented the Board with audit reports of the Harbour’s Marine Safety  
Management System throughout the year, and a summary of incident reports is available on the Aberdeen Harbour and Marine Safety Forum websites.

ENVIRONMENTAL INCIDENTS 2016

2016
> Successful Health and Safety Campaign on  
 Harbour speed limits – Average speed now below  
 Aberdeen Harbour Board 15mph limit. 

> LRAQ carried out ISO 14001:2015 gap analysis   
 leading up to full transition audit in 2017

ELECTRICITYGAS DIESEL

Total: 836,316 kWh  12.2% INCREASE FROM 2015 Total: 444,471 kWh  0.6% DECREASE FROM 2015

ABERDEEN 
HARBOUR BOARD 
ADVERSE EVENTS  
2016

HS&E 
INSPECTIONS
carried out by AHB Dock 
Control officers

11

EXTERNAL 
CERTIFICATION AUDITS

03
GAP ANALYSIS

01
both carried out by LRQA

HS&E TOURS
carried out by senior  
management team

24

COMPLIANCE 
REVIEWS
Safety, Health and  
Environmental Department

143

ENERGY USAGE
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Just in case
Throughout 2016, Aberdeen Harbour Board has provided Automated External 
Defibrillator (AED) familiarisation training for 100% of its workforce. 

The training was undertaken after research from the Resuscitation Council UK  
recommended that strengthening the response to cardiac arrest by training bystanders  
to perform CPR and use AEDs at least doubles the chances of victim survival and could  
save thousands of lives each year.

> LEGISLATION 
> ISO 14001 & OHSAS 18001
> ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD 
 SHE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
> ASSETS
> ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
> INCIDENT AND ACCIDENT REPORTS

Aberdeen Harbour introduces new Health, Safety and 
Environmental Management System 
My-C Compliance Management software was introduced in January 2016 to assist with safety, health and 
environment (SHE) management. The system was chosen for its ease of use, and its flexibility to allow port  
specific registers to be created. These registers include:

The system has led to a new way of carrying out internal audits, with focused 
compliance reviews conducted on each of the registers and this has been 
commended during our external certification audits. The system was recently 
enhanced with the introduction of a My-Incident app for mobile devices that allow 
a user to report an incident immediately using their mobile phone.  

>  RISK REGISTER (INCLUDING   
 ACTIVITY, COSHH, AND ASBESTOS)
> TRAINING MANAGEMENT
> NON-CONFORMANCE REPORTING
> ACTIONS
> AUDIT AND INSPECTION
> CONTRACTOR MANAGEMENT
> DOCUMENT CONTROL

Total: 118,271 Ltr  3.6% DECREASE FROM 2015
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NEW HORIZONS 2017

ABERDEEN HARBOUR’S LINKS WITH PHOTOGRAPHY STRETCH BACK TO  

THE 1880S WHEN THE TECHNOLOGY WAS IN ITS INFANCY.

Indeed, as part of the harbour’s millennium celebrations the port donated circa 6,000 historic 

glass plate negatives, dating from the 1880s to the 1930s, to the University of Aberdeen.  

Many of these images can be viewed online (www.abdn.ac.uk/historic/harbour/Intro.shtml). 

Keen to continue our connection with this medium, and to support our local stakeholders,  

we teamed up with North East College (NESCol) in the Autumn of 2016 and set a challenge  

for its photography students to provide photographs for our 2017 calendar. We were certainly not 

disappointed with the results, and five NESCol students were awarded for their efforts:  

their photographs being used to create the 2017 Aberdeen Harbour Calendar. 

Such was the success of the event, it is hoped that the competition will become an  

annual event. 

Since its inception three years ago, the Aberdeen Harbour Board Community Action Fund has supported 38 different charities  

with a total value of over £350,000, and it is estimated that it has benefitted more than 80,000 individuals to some extent or another. 

The range of projects, classes and community schemes the fund has supported have been varied, to say the least. They include the construction  

of a skateboard park in Kincorth; the funding of music teachers for the Torry Big Noise project; the refurbishment of Mr Therm, the Seaton  

Park playground steam engine; and transport costs for the city’s Community Food initiative, which supports food banks across the city.

Stakeholder Support
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Altens & Cove 
Community Association

Inchgarth 
Community Centre

Seaton Taking Action 
for Regeneration (STAR)

Torry Development 
Trust

WHO WE HAVE HELPED IN 2016-2017

COMMUNITY 
ACTION FUND

Dolphinwatch Community Food Initiative Aberdeen FC Community Trust

Inchgarth Community Centre Befriend a Child Denis Law Legacy Trust, Streetsport
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STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The Board presents the Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FAIR REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
Review of the business for the year can be found in the Chairman’s Statement.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Board considers that it operates in an area where there will be ongoing demand for its services. The Board has a strong record of investing in modern facilities, 
plant and equipment and this together with increased training for our employees will enable us to meet the challenges of the future in offering our port customers  
a quality cost effective service. The Board is currently working at addressing certain business risks regarding specific capacity constraints by building a new deep  
water harbour to the South of the current harbour. A design and build contract was signed with the main contractor, Dragados UK Ltd on 20 December 2016.  
The Aberdeen Harbour Expansion Plan project, which has its own detailed risk register, commenced on 1 January 2017 and is due to for completion in May 2020.

The current downturn in the oil and gas market has impacted on the activity levels in the harbour although the harbour has a wide spread of customers and  
commodities and is able to adapt to market changes.

The financial risks were limited to the normal commercial risks associated with running a business. The Aberdeen Harbour Expansion Plan (AHEP) will involve the 
business taking debt from the European Investment Bank of up to £175 million. The Board has agreed fixed interest rates for the full 16 years of the debt on tranches 
totalling £80 million. The Board is also exploring options to fix further tranches of the debt. There is no currency exposure.

The Board operates a defined benefit pension scheme and also employs two marine pilots who are members of the Pilots National Pension Fund. These arrangements 
are more fully explained in note 20 to the financial statements.

In the harbour’s business, the Board has statutory responsibility for operations in our areas of jurisdiction.

Any significant risk from any of the above risk categories would be debated by the Board and an agreed procedure of handling that risk would be delegated to the 
relevant executive board members as appropriate.

The Board has compiled a Risk Register which is reviewed in full by the Audit Committee with the highest risks reviewed by the Board on a six monthly basis.

The Board continues to monitor the current situation regarding the UK Government’s plans to leave the European Union, however, at this stage in the process,  
the impact this may have on future revenues remains unclear.

DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE

Financial results

Turnover for the year amounted to £32.0 million, an increase of 0.9% compared with 2015. An operating profit of £15.88 million was earned in 2016 compared with  
an operating profit of £13.86 million in 2015, the increase due in the main to reduced exceptional maintenance costs in the current year and the effect of above inflation 
increases in rates and charges.

The profit for the year after taxation amounted to £14.99 million. As a Trust Port the business retains all profits for reinvestment in harbour developments for the benefit 
of the harbour's stakeholders.

Future developments

The business’s plans for the future are focussed on delivering the Aberdeen Harbour Expansion Plan, which will provide capacity for larger vessels with 1,400 metres 
of deep water berths supported by 125,000 square metres of lay down area.

Key performance indicators

The annual budget agreed by the Board is the basis for measuring the performance of the business throughout the year. In addition this drives financial and  
non-financial targets for the senior management team. As part of the budgeting process the Board considers the financial projections for a five year time horizon with 
the strategic aim of the business to provide state of the art facilities for its customers and to leave the business in a better condition than when they took office.

The KPIs which are used to measure these aspects include:

>  Quayside Utilisation 
>  Vessel Movements/Pilotage Acts 
>  Income Per Tonne – Vessels 
>  Income Per Tonne – Goods 
>  Debtor Days 
>  EBITDA – Actual v Budget 
>  Rental Property Occupied

By including EBITDA as a KPI the business aims to monitor the profitability of the business in order that the business generates the necessary funds to re-invest in the 
port infrastructure to ensure appropriate and relevant facilities can be provided for our customers.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 
C Parker 
Chief Executive 
27 March 2017

REPORT OF THE BOARD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The Board presents its report with the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Administration, maintenance and improvement of the harbour is entrusted to Aberdeen Harbour Board, an independent statutory body formed under the terms of the 
Aberdeen Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1960. Certain modifications to this constitution were embodied in the Aberdeen Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1987 and 
the Aberdeen Harbour Revision (Constitution) Order 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Board are the operation and maintenance of the harbour facilities and the provision of services ancillary thereto.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS
Review of business for the year can be found in the Chairman’s Statement.

BOARD MEMBERS
Other than as set out below board members have held office during the whole of the period from 1 January 2016 to the date of this report.

Chairman

A Y MacKenzie

Vice-Chairman

H D Woodcock

Members

C Bain  
J Bell  
F A W Bowden (Demitted office 31 December 2016) 
M L Bowyer  
L Campbell (Appointed 1 January 2017) 
M D Laing  
M McNeill  
J MacLennan (Appointed 1 January 2017) 
G Massie (Demitted office 31 December 2016) 
C Parker  
M A Porter  
A J Strachan 

Principal Officers

C Parker Chief Executive 
J Bell Finance Director 
Captain J Gaskin Harbour Master 
K D Young Engineering Director 
C Bain External Relations Director 
M J North Commercial Director

BOARD SECRETARY
MacKinnons Solicitors

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY
It is the policy of the Board to pay all verified accounts within agreed settlement terms.

AUDITOR 
The auditors, Johnston Carmichael LLP, will be deemed re-appointed under S487 of the Companies Act 2006.

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE TO AUDITOR
So far as the members are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) of which the Board’s auditors  
are unaware, and each member has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a member in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant  
audit information and to establish that the Board’s auditors are aware of that information.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 
MacKinnons Solicitors 
Board secretary 
27 March 2017
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The Board is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Report of the Board and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Legislation requires the Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Board has elected to prepare the financial statements in 
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the  
Board must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Board and of the profit or  
loss of the Board for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Board is required to:

>  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

>  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

>  state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

>  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Board will continue in business.

The Board is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy  
at any time the financial position of the Board and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the applicable legislation. They are also  
responsible for safeguarding the harbour’s assets and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Harbours Act 1964 as amended by the Transport Act 1981.

We have audited the Financial Statements of Aberdeen Harbour Board for the year ended 31 December 2016 set out on pages 36 to 56. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice), including FRS 102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

This report is made solely to the members of Aberdeen Harbour Board, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and Harbours  
Act 1964, as amended by the Transport Act 1981. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Board’s members those matters we are required  
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the Board and the Board’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Board and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Board set out on page 34, the Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements  
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the Financial Statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate  
to the Board’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the  
Board; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify 
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies 
we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

>  give a true and fair view of the state of the Board’s affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of its profit for the year then ended;

>  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

>  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Harbours Act 1964, as amended by the Transport Act 1981.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 and Harbours Act 1964, as amended by the Transport Act 1981

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Board for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared are 
consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 and Harbours Act 1964, as amended by the Transport Act 1981 requires 
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

>  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

>  the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

>  certain disclosures of Board members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

>  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Jean Main (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of Johnston Carmichael LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Statutory Auditor 
27 March 2017

Bishop’s Court, 29 Albyn Place, ABERDEEN  AB10 1YL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS  
OF ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

  2016  2015  

 Notes £’000  £’000

TURNOVER 3 32,015  31,733

Cost of sales 4 (10,787 ) (12,362)

GROSS PROFIT  21,228  19,371 

Administrative expenses  (5,345 ) (5,513)

OPERATING PROFIT 5 15,883  13,858 

Interest receivable and similar income 8 1,692  1,174 

Fair value gains and losses on equity investments 12 1,065  (549) 

Fair value gains and losses on investment properties 11 -  (4,771) 

Change in benefits in pension scheme 20 -  8,255

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  18,640  17,967 

Taxation 9 (3,645 ) (3,659)

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 21 14,995  14,308

The Profit and Loss Account has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing operations.

  2016  2015  

 Notes £’000  £’000

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  14,995  14,308

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    

Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension schemes 20 (4,629 ) (25) 

Tax relating to other comprehensive income  945  5

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  (3,684 ) (20)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  11,311  14,288

    2016     2015
 Notes £’000   £’000  £’000   £’000

FIXED ASSETS 

Tangible assets 10    83,064     84,003 

Investment properties 11    32,236     32,236 

Investments 12    37,654     35,126

     152,954     151,365

CURRENT ASSETS 

Stocks 14 70     65  

Debtors falling due after one year 15 15,515     2,392 

Debtors falling due within one year 15 26,945     4,281  

Cash at bank and in hand  27,380     24,312 

  69,910     31,050 

CREDITORS 

Amounts falling due within one year 16 (31,458 )    (5,693 ) 

NET CURRENT ASSETS     38,452     25,357

  

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES     191,406     176,722

CREDITORS 

Amounts falling due after more than one year 16    (1,657 )    (1,823)

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 18    (869 )    (1,951)

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION SURPLUS     188,880     172,948

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SURPLUS 20    613     5,233

NET ASSETS     189,493     178,181

  

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 

Revaluation reserve 21    5,165     4,273 

Other reserves 21    8,079     8,036 

Profit and loss reserves 21    176,249     165,872

TOTAL EQUITY     189,493     178,181

  

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 27 March 2017 and signed on its behalf by: 

A Y MacKenzie Chairman  

C Parker Chief Executive
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

  Equity   Investment      
  investment   property  Profit and    
  revaluation   revaluation  loss   
  reserve   reserve  reserves   Total

 Notes £’000   £’000  £’000   £’000

BALANCE AT 1 JANUARY 2015  4,430   12,115  147,348   163,893 

Profit for the year  (157 )  (4,079 ) 18,544   14,308 

Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans 20 -   -  (25 )  (25) 

Tax relating to other comprehensive income  -   -  5   5

BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2015  4,273   8,036  165,872   178,181

  

PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

Profit for the year  892   43  14,060   14,995 

Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans 20 -   -  (4,629 )  (4,629) 

Tax relating to other comprehensive income  -   -  946   946

BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2016  5,165   8,079  176,249   189,493

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

    2016     2015
 Notes £’000   £’000  £’000   £’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash generated from operations 26    7,478     17,633 

Income taxes paid     (3,357 )    (3,269)

NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     4,121     14,364

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of tangible fixed assets  (1,746 )    (2,433 )  

Proceeds on disposal of tangible fixed assets  348     1  

Interest received  345     285 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES     (1,053 )    (2,147)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES     -     -

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     3,068     12,217 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year     24,312     12,095

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR     27,380     24,312
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 Board information

 Aberdeen Harbour Board is a trust port having its principal place of business in Scotland. The main office is 16 Regent Quay, Aberdeen, AB11 5SS.

1.1 Accounting convention

 The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the Board. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded  
 to the nearest £000.

 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of investment properties and certain financial   
 instruments at fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

1.2 Going concern

 The Board members at the time of approving the financial statements, have a reasonable expectation that the Board has adequate resources to continue in   
 operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

1.3 Turnover

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received in respect of services provided in the normal course of business stated net of Value Added   
 Tax. Rents receivable are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

1.4 Tangible fixed assets

 Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of depreciation and any impairment losses.

 Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis on the asset costs using asset lives consistent with past practice, subject to a maximum quay life of 40 years.   
 Dredgings are depreciated over a 40 year period. Dock, structures, roads and permanent ways are depreciated over the periods of between 20 and 40 years. 
 Plant and machinery are depreciated on the basis of an economic life of 3 to 20 years depending on the nature of the asset. Floating craft is depreciated over a   
 period of 15 years. Buildings are depreciated over the periods of between 20 and 40 years. Land and capital works in progress are not depreciated.

 Included in capital works in progress are costs of £7.38 million in relation to the Aberdeen Harbour Expansion Project. The Board signed a construction contract   
 with Dragados UK Limited on 20 December 2016 with work commencing in January 2017.

1.5 Investment properties

 Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is measured using the fair value model and stated at its fair value as 
 the reporting end date. The surplus or deficit on revaluation is recognised in the profit and loss account.

1.6 Fixed asset investments

 Investments held as fixed assets are stated at market value. The gains and losses on the fair value of the investments are reported through the profit and 
 loss account.

1.7 Impairment of fixed assets

 At each reporting end date, the Board reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have   
 suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment   
 loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Board estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating   
 unit to which the asset belongs.

 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their  
 present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the   
 estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating   
 unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account, unless the relevant asset is carried at a   
 revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

 Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply. Where an impairment loss subsequently   
 reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased   
 carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating  
 unit) prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit and loss account, unless the relevant asset is carried in at a revalued   
 amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT)

1.8 Stocks

 Stocks are valued at lower of invoice cost on an average cost basis and estimated net realisable value. Provision is made for obsolete stock.

1.9 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of twelve 
 months or less.

1.10 Financial assets

 The Board has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all 
 of its financial instruments.

 Financial assets are recognised in the Board’s balance sheet when the Board becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

 Financial assets are classified into specified categories. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the 
 time of recognition.

 Basic financial assets, which include trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price including transaction   
 costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the   
 transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Other financial assets classified as fair value through   
 profit and loss account are measured at fair value.

 Loans and receivables

 Trade debtors, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and   
 receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

 Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial. The effective  
 interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The effective   
 interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the debt instrument to the net carrying amount on  
 initial recognition.

 Impairment of financial assets

 Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss account, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting end date.

 Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial   
 asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. The impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account.

 Derecognition of financial assets

 Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or when the company transfers the   
 financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained 
 but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

1.11 Financial liabilities

 Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing   
 transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

 Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

 Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are   
 classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially  
 at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 Derecognition of financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the Board’s obligations are discharged, cancelled, or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT)

1.12 Taxation

 The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

 Current tax

 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the profit and loss account because it excludes  
 items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Board’s liability for  
 current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting end date.

 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all timing differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be  
 recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing difference arises  
 from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable   
 profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when   
 the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except when it relates to items charged or credited  
 directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Board has a legally enforceable  
 right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

1.13 Employee benefits

 The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are required to be recognised as part of the cost of   
 stock or fixed assets.

 The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are received.

 Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the Board is demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of an employee or  
 to provide termination benefits.

1.14 Leases

 Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessees. All other   
 leases are classified as operating leases.

 Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at the lower of the assets’ fair value at the date of inception and the present value of the minimum   
 lease payments. The related liability is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital and   
 interest elements. The interest is charged to the profit and loss account so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
 the liability.

 Rentals payable under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to expenditure on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant  
 lease except where another more systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the lease asset are consumed.

1.15 Capital investment grants

 Capital investment grants are credited to the profit and loss account over the expected useful lives of the relevant fixed assets.

1.16 Finance lease receivables

 Interest from finance leasing contracts, being in excess of amounts received over the cost in finance leasing contracts, is taken to profit and loss account reducing  
 capital invested throughout the period of the contract.

 Amounts receivable under finance leases are included within other debtors.

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT)

1.17 Retirement benefits

 The Board operates one defined benefit pension scheme and participates in another (Pilots National Pension Fund).

 > For the main scheme, in accordance with FRS 102, the service cost of pension provision relating to the year, together with the cost of any benefits relating to   
  past service, is charged to operating profit. A charge equal to interest on the scheme liabilities and a credit equivalent to the long-term expected return on   
  assets are included in the profit and loss account under ‘Interest Receivable and Similar Income’. The difference between the market value of the scheme and   
  the present value of the accrued pension liabilities is shown as an asset or liability on the balance sheet. Deferred tax is recognised in relation to the timing   
  differences arising on pension costs. Any difference between the net interest on assets and the return actually achieved is recognised in the statement of other  
  comprehensive income along with differences which arise from other experience or assumption changes.

 > The Pilots National Pension Fund is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution as the Board’s ultimate share of assets and liabilities cannot be identified.

 The Board also operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions payable to the Board’s pension scheme are charged to the profit and loss account   
 in the period to which they relate. Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or   
 prepayments in the balance sheet.

2 JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Board’s accounting policies, the board members are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount   
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other   
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the    
estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are outlined below:

Critical judgements

The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Useful economic life of fixed assets

Land & Buildings, Dredging, Dock Structures, Plant & Machinery, and Floating Craft are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets. Useful lives are based on   
the Board’s estimates of the period that the assets will generate revenue, which are reviewed annually for continued appropriateness. The carrying values are   
tested for impairment when there is an indication that the value of the assets might be impaired. When carrying out impairment tests, these would be based upon   
future cash flow forecasts and these forecasts would be based upon management judgement. Future events could cause the assumptions to change.

The Board members have considered whether or not there were indicators of impairment and concluded that at the balance sheet date none were identified. 
The assessment included both external sources such as the market conditions, and internal sources such as physical damage and obsolescence.

Income taxes

The Board is subject to income taxation in the UK, where judgement arises in determining the provision for income taxes. During the ordinary course of business,   
there are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As a result, the Board recognises tax liabilities based on estimates of   
whether additional taxes and interest will be due. The Board believes its accruals for tax liabilities and provisions for deferred tax are adequate for all financial   
years based on its assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and   
may involve a series of judgements about future events. To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters is different than the amounts recorded, such   
differences will impact on the taxation charge made in the profit and loss account in the period in which such determination is made.

Defined benefit pension schemes

Accounting for pensions and other-post retirement benefits involves judgements about uncertain events including estimated retirement dates, salary levels at   
retirement mortality rates, determination of discount rates for measuring plans obligations and net interest expense and assumptions for inflation rates.

Pension and other post retirement assumptions are reviewed by the Board at the end of each year. These assumptions are used to determine the projected benefit   
obligations at the year end and hence surpluses and deficits are recorded on the Board’s balance sheet, and pension and other post-retirement benefit expense for   
the following year.

The assumptions used are provided in note 20.
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3 TURNOVER

An analysis of the Board’s turnover is as follows:

       2016   2015
       £’000   £’000

Turnover   

Dues: on vessels     13,998   13,530 

Dues: on goods     8,765   7,957 

Cranage and weighbridge     151   234 

Storage     324   523 

Rent       6,235   6,493 

Pilotage     2,449   2,847 

Other revenue     93   149

       32,015   31,733

Other significant revenue   

Interest income (net)     590   218 

Dividends receivable (net)     1,102   956

4 COST OF SALES

       2016   2015
       £’000   £’000

Operating and maintenance     7,752   9,392 

Dredging     568   469 

Depreciation (net of grants)     2,467   2,501

       10,787   12,362

5 OPERATING PROFIT

       2016   2015
       £’000   £’000

Operating profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting): 

Direct costs of pilotage     2,034   2,298 

Capital investment grants     (5 )  (5) 

Fees payable to the Board’s auditors for the audit of the Board’s annual accounts    27   20 

Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets     2,902   2,953 

Profit on disposal of fixed assets     (313 )  (1) 

Operating lease charges     345   357

6 EMPLOYEES

The average monthly number of persons (including executive board members) employed by the Board during the year was:

         2016   2015
         Number   Number

Executive Board Member       3   3 

Administrative and Managerial       28   26 

Operating and Maintenance       65   66

         96   95

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

         2016   2015
         £’000   £’000

Wages and salaries       5,095   5,099 

Social security costs       570   512 

Pension costs       1,632   1,905

         7,297   7,516

7 BOARD MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION

         2016   2015
         £’000   £’000

Remuneration for qualifying services       621   613 

Board pension contributions to defined contribution schemes       29   29 

Board pension contributions to defined benefit schemes       44   38

         694   680

The number of Board members for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined contribution schemes amounted to 1 (2015 - 1).

The number of Board members for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined benefit schemes amounted to 1 (2015 - 1). Amount accrued in respect of the 
highest paid Board member at 31 December 2016 was £nil (2015 - £nil).

Remuneration disclosed above include the following amounts paid to the highest paid Board member:

Remuneration for qualifying services       247   246



   

46   Aberdeen Harbour Board  Annual Review 2016/17 Aberdeen Harbour Board  Annual Review 2016/17   47

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

8 INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

         2016   2015
         £’000   £’000

Interest income   

Interest on bank deposits       246   175 

Other interest income       125   110

Total interest revenue       371   285 

            

Other income from investments   

Dividends receivable (net)       1,102   956

         1,473   1,241 

Other finance income   

Return on pension scheme assets       2,242   2,188 

Interest on pension scheme liabilities       (2,023 )  (2,255)

         219   (67)

Total interest receivable and similar income       1,692   1,174

9 TAXATION

         2016   2015
         £’000   £’000

Current tax   

UK corporation tax on profits for the current period       3,569   3,307 

Over-provision in respect to prior years       -   (68)

Total current tax       3,569   3,239

 

Deferred tax   

Accelerated capital allowances       (139 )  (42) 

Change in value of investment properties       (43 )  (692) 

Change in value of equity investments       173   (392) 

Unpaid pension contributions       83   27 

Timing differences on pension costs       2   1,519

Total deferred tax       76   420

Total tax charge       3,645   3,659

9 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The actual charge for the year can be reconciled to the expected charge based on the profit or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

         2016   2015
         £’000   £’000

Profit before taxation       18,640   17,967

Expected tax charge based on a corporation tax rate of 20.00% (2015 - 20.25%)      3,728   3,638 

Items not deductible for tax purposes       6   303 

Indexation on capital gains       (521 )  (214) 

Adjustments in respect of prior years       224   (68) 

Adjust deferred tax to average rate of 20.00%       208   -

Tax expense for the year       3,645   3,659

In addition to the amount charged to the profit and loss account, the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised directly 
in other comprehensive income:

         2016   2015
         £’000   £’000

Deferred tax arising on: 

Actuarial differences recognised as other comprehensive income       (945 )  (5)
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10 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

     Docks,       
     Structures,      
   Land and  Roads and    Capital    
   buildings  Permanent Plant and Floating  Works in 
   Freehold Dredging Way machinery Craft  Progress Total

   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000

COST 

At 1 January 2016 26,243 9,767 90,891 9,077  2,406 5,544 143,928 

Additions - - - 161  - 1,837 1,998 

Disposals - - - (72 ) - - (72)

At 31 December 2016 26,243 9,767 90,891 9,166 2,406  7,381 145,854

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 

At 1 January 2016 8,274 2,276 41,135 6,970  1,270  - 59,925 

Depreciation charged in the year 325 214 1,765 438  160  - 2,902 

Eliminated in respect of disposals - - - (37 ) -  - (37)

At 31 December 2016 8,599 2,490 42,900 7,371 1,430  - 62,790

CARRYING AMOUNT 

At 31 December 2016 17,644 7,277 47,991 1,795 976  7,381 83,064

At 31 December 2015 17,969 7,491 49,756 2,107 1,136  5,544 84,003

Included in cost of land and buildings is freehold land of £11,782,959 (2015 - £11,782,959) which is not depreciated.

11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

             2016  
             £’000

Fair Value        

At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016           32,236

The fair value of the investment properties has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at 7 May 2015 by J & E Shepherd Chartered Surveyors,  
who are independent from the Board. The valuation was made on an open market value basis by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar 
properties as at 31 December 2014. The Board have assessed the current market conditions at 31 December 2016 to arrive at their year end valuation.

12 INVESTMENTS

           Fixed Assets

         2016    2015
         £’000    £’000

Listed investments       37,654    35,126

         37,654    35,126

Movements in fixed asset investments           Shares  
             £’000

Valuation        

At 1 January 2015           35,126 

Additions           1,463 

Valuation changes           1,065

At 31 December 2016           37,654

Carrying amount        

At 31 December 2016           37,654

At 31 December 2015           35,126

The fair value of listed investments is determined by reference to the quoted price for identical assets in an active market at the balance sheet date.

Aberdeen Harbour Limited 
Aberdeen Harbour Board owns 100% of the issued share capital of Aberdeen Harbour Limited, a company incorporated in Scotland. Aberdeen Harbour Limited is 
engaged in the business of renting out property.

The results of Aberdeen Harbour Limited are not material and therefore group financial statements have not been prepared. For the year ended 31 December 2016, 
the company reported results for the year of £nil and net assets of £1.

The Board charged Aberdeen Harbour Limited £148,333 (2015 - £366,423) for rent and £2,000 in respect to management charges (2015 - £2,000).
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13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

       2016  2015
       £’000  £’000

Carrying amount of financial assets   

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost     30,143  27,564 

Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss account    37,654  35,126 

Instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss account     875  927

       68,672  63,617

Carrying amount of financial liabilities   

Measured at fair value through profit and loss account     1,805  1,942 

Measured at amortised cost     29,382  3,872

       31,187  5,814

14 STOCKS

       2016  2015
       £’000  £’000

Stocks      70  65

15 DEBTORS

       2016  2015
       £’000  £’000

Amounts falling due within one year:   

Trade debtors     2,765  3,250 

Other debtors     23,686  509 

Prepayments and accrued income     494  522

       26,945  4,281

Amounts falling due after one year:   

Other debtors     14,212  875 

Deferred tax asset (note 18)     1,303  1,517

       15,515  2,392

Total debtors     42,460  6,673

16 CREDITORS

    Due within one year   Due after one year

    2016 2015 2016 2015
   Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Taxation and social security  1,919 1,683 - - 

Capital investment grants 19 5 - - 10 

Trade creditors  26,338 243 - - 

Rent payments received on account  1,284 1,228 - - 

Accruals  704 1,630 - - 

Other creditors  1,208 909 1,657 1,813

    31,458 5,693 1,657 1,823

17 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES       
      2016 2015

   Notes   £’000 £’000

Deferred tax liabilities 18   869 1,951

      869 1,951

18 DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Board and movements thereon:

    Liabilities Liabilities Assets Assets 

    2016 2015 2016 2015
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balances:   

Accelerated capital allowances  765 904 - - 

Pension contributions unpaid at the year end  - - 307 390 

Unrealised gain on investments  - - 44 218 

Unrealised gain on investment properties  - - 952 909 

Deferred tax on defined pension scheme  104 1,047 - -

    869 1,951 1,303 1,517
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19 CAPITAL INVESTMENT GRANTS

       2016  2015
       £’000  £’000

Capital investment grants     5  10

       5  10

Deferred income is included in the financial statements as follows:

       2016  2015
       £’000  £’000

Current liabilities     5  - 

Non-current liabilities     -  10

       5  10

20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Defined contribution schemes

The Board operates a defined contribution pension plan for its employees. The amount recognised as an expense in the year was £290,095 (2015 - £204,175).

Defined benefit schemes

The Board operates a defined benefit pension plan for qualifying employees providing benefits based upon final pensionable pay. The pension plan is funded by 
payment of contributions and the assets of the plan are held in a separately administered fund. The fund was closed to new members on the 31 October 2013.

The most recent triennial valuation was carried out at 31 March 2014 and this showed that the market value of the Fund’s assets were £58.6 million and that the 
actuarial value of those assets represented 106% of the benefits that had accrued to the members after allowing for the expected future increases in earnings.  
The contributions to the scheme are determined by a qualified actuary and in 2016 were £1,117,000 (2015 - £1,109,000).

The Board is also contributing for two current employees to a defined benefit pension plan called the Pilot’s National Pension Fund. The PNPF is unusual in that the 
membership of the Fund includes both employed and self employed members. As at 31 December 2013 the valuation of the Fund’s assets totalled £270.6 million,  
which represented 57% of the liabilities and resulting in a deficit of £203 million. A decision of the courts in June 2010 determined that the Trustees of the PNPF  
could amend the Trust Deed and Rules so that all Competent Harbour Authorities (pilot licensing authorities) whether direct employees or not would have a joint and 
several responsibilities to meet any funding deficit. The results of the latest triennial carried out to 31 December 2016 will not be known until the second half of 2017 
and therefore do not form part of these financial statements.

The Board’s share of the funding deficit based on the Trustee’s most recent valuation advice has been estimated at £2.53 million which the Trustees have agreed will  
be payable by monthly instalments over a 16 year period commencing on 1 January 2013. The obligation is included within other creditors at the year end measured at 
its present value of future discounted cash flows.

In accordance with FRS 102, transactions with the PNPF are accounted for as if the Fund were a defined contribution scheme as there is insufficient information 
available to use defined benefit accounting for the multi-employer plan. During the year employer contributions paid to the PNPF amounted to £19,239 (2015 - £18,963). 
These have been included in cost of sales in the profit and loss account.

20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

The principal actuarial assumptions of the Board’s defined benefit scheme were as follows:

  2016  2015
  %  %

Discount rate  2.70                            3.80 

Expected rate of salary increases  4.05                            3.85 

Expected rate of increase of pension increases  2.30                            2.10 

Inflation (RPI)  3.30                            3.10 

Inflation (CPI)    2.30                            2.10

The mortality assumptions used for longevity (in years) on retirement at age 65 are:

  2016          2015  
  Years  Years

Retired male member age 65 (current life expectancy)  22.7  22.6 

Non-retired male member aged 40 (life expectancy at 65)  25.0                            24.9

Total amounts recognised in the year for the Board’s defined benefit pension plan was as follows:

  2016  2015
  £’000  £’000

Current service cost  1,152  1,468 

Net interest on defined benefit (asset)/liability  (219 ) 67 

Changes in benefits  -  (8,255) 

Administrative costs  175  214

Total costs/(income)  1,108  (6,506)

Amounts taken to other comprehensive income

  2016  2015
  £’000  £’000

Effect of changes in assumptions  (13,597 ) 1,509 

Effect of experience adjustments  1,056  - 

Return on plan assets  7,912  (1,534)

Actuarial losses  (4,629 ) (25)

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet was as follows:

  2016  2015
  £’000  £’000

Present value of defined benefit obligations  (67,448 ) (54,842) 

Fair value of plan assets  68,061  60,075

Total surplus recognised  613  5,233
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20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefits obligation are as follows:

          2016
          £’000

Liabilities at 1 January 2016        54,842 

Current service cost        1,152 

Interest cost        2,023 

Actuarial losses        12,541 

Contributions by scheme members        147 

Benefits paid        (3,194) 

Insurance premiums for risk benefits        (63)

At 31 December 2016        67,448

The Board expects to contribute £1,139,000 to the pension scheme in 2017. 

Movements in the fair value of plan assets

          2016
          £’000

Fair value of assets at 1 January 2016        60,075 

Interest income        2,242 

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest)        7,912 

Administrative expenses        (175) 

Insurance premiums for risk        (63) 

Contributions by the employer        1,117 

Contributions by scheme members        147 

Benefits paid        (3,194)

At 31 December 2016        68,061

Fair value of plan assets at the reporting period end

        2016  2015  
        £’000  £’000

Equity instruments      18,418  15,216 

Debt instruments      15,945  18,232 

Diversified growth fund      26,623  26,457 

Liability driven investments        6,937  - 

Cash and net current assets           138  170

         68,061 60,075

21 RESERVES

Profit and loss reserves

The profit and loss account represents cumulative realisable profits and losses.

Equity investment revaluation reserve

The equity investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative effect of revaluations net of deferred tax of listed investments where a policy of revaluation  
has been adopted.

Investment properties revaluation reserve

The investment properties revaluation reserve represents the cumulative effect of revaluations net of deferred tax of investment properties. The reserve has been  
made to separately identify non-distributable profits from distributable profits.

22 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2016 the Board had capital commitments as follows: 
Contracted for but not provided in the Financial Statements: 

       2016  2015  
       £’000  £’000

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment     297,708  452

23 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Lessee

As at 31 December 2016, the Board had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases of £345,200 in respect of land and buildings (2015 - £345,200). 
The expiry period is after five years.

Lessor

The Board owns 24 investment properties for rental purposes. Rental income earned during the year was £6,228,000 (2015 - £6,493,000). All operating lease contracts 
contain market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its option to renew. The lessee does not have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of 
the lease period.

At the reporting end date the Board had contracted with tenants for the following minimum lease payments:

       2016  2015     
       £’000  £’000

Within one year     2,770  3,374 

Between two and five years     7,025  8,655 

In over five years     3,945  5,271

       13,740  17,300
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24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Remuneration of key management personnel 

The remuneration of key management personnel, some of who are also Board members, is as follows.     
    2016  2015  
    £’000  £’000

Aggregate compensation    1,019  959

No guarantees have been given or received.

25 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The equity investments held at year end with a value of £37,654,000 were sold on 11 January 2017 for £37,811,000. The sale was part of the Board’s overall strategy 
for financing the Harbour Expansion Project.

The Board signed an agreement with the European Investment Bank on 21 June 2016 to provide a debt facility for the Harbour Expansion Project of up to a maximum  
of £175 million. The first tranche of £10 million will be drawn on 3 April 2017.

26 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

      2016  2015    
      £’000  £’000

Profit for the year    14,995  14,308 

Adjustments for:        

Income tax expense    3,645  3,659 

Investment income    (1,692 ) (956) 

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets    (313 ) (1) 

Fair value gains and losses on investment properties    -  4,771 

Fair value gains and losses on investments    (1,065 ) 549 

Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets    2,902  2,953 

Pension scheme non-cash movement    210  (7,914)

Movements in working capital:        

(Increase) in stocks    (5 ) (7) 

(Increase)/decrease in debtors    (35,974 ) 601 

Increase/(decrease) in creditors    24,780  (325) 

Decrease in capital investment grants    (5 ) (5)

Cash generated from operations      7,478 17,633

DETAILED TRADING AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

    2016     2015
  £’000   £’000  £’000   £’000

Turnover 

Dues on vessels     13,998     13,530 

Dues on goods     8,765     7,957 

Rent     6,235     6,493 

Pilotage     2,449     2,847 

Storage     324     523 

Cranage and weighbridge     151     234 

Other revenue     93     149

     32,015     31,733

Cost of sales 

Dredging costs  568     469 

Wages and salaries  3,630     4,166 

Social security costs  426     388 

Staff pension costs  1,282     1,332 

Operating and maintenance  2,414     3,506 

Depreciation  2,467     2,501

     (10,787 )    (12,362 )

Gross profit     21,228     19,371

Administrative expenses     (5,345 )    (5,513 )

Operating profit     15,883     13,858

Investment revenues 

Bank interest received  246     175 

Other interest received on financial instruments  125     110 

Net interest on defined benefit asset  2,242     2,188 

Interest due on finance lease receivable  (2,023 )    (2,255 ) 

Dividends receivable (net)  1,102     956

     1,692     1,174

Profit before taxation     17,575     15,032
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 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Number of vessels 

European Union 1,627 1,764 1,922 1,670 1,741 

Foreign (excl.EU)   254 277 324 297 267 

Offshore Oil 4,488 5,254 5,601 5,687 5,861 

Fishing  47 121 83 167 264 

Cruise 22 12 7 13 9

 6,438 7,428 7,937 7,834 8,142

Tonnage of Vessels (Thousand Gross Tonnes) 

European Union 7,923 7,822 7,629 8,103 8,091 

Foreign (excl.EU)   1,293 1,537 1,758 1,710 1,439 

Offshore Oil 16,149 18,084 18,675 18,226 18,591 

Fishing  6 19 10 24 23 

Cruise 89 45 34 61 44

 25,460 27,507 28,106 28,124 28,188

Traffic Statistics (Thousand Tonnes) 

Goods Inwards 

Commercial Traffic 1,361 1,496 1,588 1,705 1,708 

Offshore Oil Traffic   515 541 548 541 582

 1,876 2,037 2,136 2,246 2,290

Goods Outwards 

Commercial Traffic 632 679 753 700 723 

Offshore Oil Traffic   1,678 1,800 1,858 1,936 2,126

 2,310 2,479 2,611 2,635 2,849

Total Goods Inwards and Outwards   4,186  4,516 4,747 4,882 5,139

Number of Passengers  151,727  158,226 153,756 155,490 145,105

NOTES
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ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD

16 Regent Quay
Aberdeen
AB11 5SS

t:  +44 (0)1224 597000
e:  info@aberdeen-harbour.co.uk

www.aberdeen-harbour.co.uk

Heaven 42 is produced from Totally 
Chlorine-Free (TCF) virgin fibre wood 
pulp from sustainable forest sources and 
is FSC Certified in accordance with the 
rules of The Forest Stewardship Council.


